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OFAC EU
UK

OFAC EU UK

OFAC EU UK

CIMA CIMA

TIA

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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1.17
3,750 AEOI
2,000
100.00
100.00

0.01
3,750

0.100

AEOI 2,000

0.02

0.01
3,750
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2022
20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
20.315 15.315

2038 20 15
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15.315
2038
15

20.315
15.315 2038 20 15

2022

81 50

US 1GA 100
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CRS AEOI
AEOI TIA US IGA CRS
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2022
14,682,780.00 99.02
145,779.21 0.98
14,828,559.21
2.147 100.00

(2022

Goldman Sachs FP
2018

1.730

2024/4/30 |15,176,000 |15,045,486 |14,682,780 |99.02

2022

2022
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2022

(2020 31 19,696,133.62 2,852,197,110 97.04 14,052
2021 31 18,195,683.46 2,634,916,922 106.44 15,414
2022 31 15,551,001.60 2,251,940,542 99.49 14,407
2021 10 17,733,824 .98 2,568,035,195 105.91 15,337
11 17,510,892.00 2,535,752,271 105.14 15,225
12 17,520,132.09 2,537,090,328 105.96 15,344
2022 16,854,513.45 2,440,702,093 103.53 14,992
16,596,493.12 2,403,338,169 102.26 14,808
16,115,697.42 2,333,714,143 100.41 14,540
15,780,770.08 2,285,213,315 98.93 14,326
15,551,001.60 2,251,940,542 99.49 14,407
15,352,655.38 2,223,218,026 98.61 14,280
15,368,994.99 2,225,584,165 99.09 14,349
15,133,710.47 2,191,512,613 98.30 14,235
14,828,559.21 2,147,323,659 97.20 14,076

0.49 71

0.83 120

0.49 71
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2.47
10.54
6.07
100 x
100.00
210,962 8,000 202,962
(210,962) (8,000) (202,962)
0 32,017 170,945
) (32,017) (170,945)
0 14,651 156,294
) (14,651) (156,294)
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Lux-Fund-Business@mizuho. lu
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FRA

FRA

CIMA

DPA
DPA

DPA
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DPA
DPA

2019 15
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Eurex TMX
Nasdaq OMX Nordic
12 24
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14

10

Eurex TMX
Nasdag OMX Nordic
12 24
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2024 10

2020

Title

10
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60

90
90

60
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131

23 103

2022
144 .81
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2022 31

2022 31 2021 31
322,607 46,717 305,227 44,200
15,355,624 2,223,648 18,059,299 2,615,167
15,678,231 2,270,365 18,364,526 2,659,367
15,329,927 2,219,927 16,848,615 2,439,848
221,074 32,014 1,347,068 195,069
15,551,001 2,251,940 18,195,683 2,634,917
36,044 5,220 72,974 10,567
27,618 3,999 23,300 3,374
19,133 2,771 22,750 3,294
17,931 2,597 17,929 2,596
13,638 1,975 16,365 2,370
5,200 753 6,223 901
3,467 502 4,148 601
2,666 386 3,154 457
1,533 222 2,000 290
127,230 18,424 168,843 24,450
15,678,231 2,270,365 18,364,526 2,659,367

2022 29

2022 29
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2022 31

2022 31 2021 31
274,568 39,760 371,465 53,792
(1,253,257) (181,484) 1,643,138 237,943
64,786 9,382 256,074 37,082
(913,903) (132,342) 2,270,677 328,817
19,412 2,811 66,897 9,687
32,891 4,763 47,956 6,945
21,090 3,054 24,650 3,570
16,431 2,379 21,242 3,076
18,002 2,607 18,002 2,607
12,338 1,787 15,001 2,172
4,650 673 6,133 888
4,628 670 4,735 686
4,489 650 2,760 400
- - 399 58
133,931 19,395 207,775 30,088
(1,047,834) (151,737) 2,062,902 298,729
(1,047,834) (151,737) 2,062,902 298,729
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31

31
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2022 31
20,264,780 2,934,543 (568, 646) (82,346) 19,696,134 2,852,197
(3,416,165) (494,695) - - (3,416,165) (494,695)
- - (147,188) (21,314) (147,188) (21,314)
- - 2,062,902 298,729 2,062,902 298,729
16,848,615 2,439,848 1,347,068 195,069 18,195,683 2,634,917
(1,518,688) (219,921) - - (1,518,688) (219,921)
- - (78,160) (11,318) (78,160) (11,318)
- - (1,047,834) (151,737) (1,047,834) (151,737)
15,329,927 2,219,927 221,074 32,014 15,551,001 2,251,940
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
(1,047,834) (151,737) 2,062,902 298,729
1,515,204 219,417 3,418,640 495,053
(64,786) (9,382) (256,074) (37,082)
1,253,257 181,484  (1,643,138) (237,943)
(36,930) (5,348) 66,897 9,687
4,318 625 336 49
(3,617) (524) (1,885) (273)
2 0 (1,898) (275)
Q@.727) (395) @157) (23)
(1,023) (148) (655) (95)
(681) (99) (439) (64)
(488) 1) (1,778) (257)
(467) (68) (3,648) (528)
1,614,228 233,756 3,639,103 526,979
(1,518,688) (219,921)  (3,416,165) (494,695)
(78,160) (11,318) (147,188) (21,314)
(1,596,848) (231,240)  (3,563,353) (516,009)
17,380 2,517 75,750 10,969
305,227 44,200 229,477 33,231
322,607 46,717 305,227 44,200
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26
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31

2011 29

KY1-1107
25 694
15

96
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2022 31

2022 31

2009
32
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2022 31 2021 31
15,416,270 15,355,624 16,866,688 18,059,299
2022 31 2024 30 2021 2024 30 1.73 2021
1.73 0.00 2021 0.37
2011 29 2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011
29 2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011 2019
19
0.10
20,000 AEOI 2,000
2011 2019
26
0.50
10
60
2011 2019 19
0.02

78/187



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12
0.03
2019 12
0.50
10 100
2019 23
2022 31 2021 31
170,945 202,962
(14,651) (32,017)
156,294 170,945
99.49 106.44
2022 31 15,551,001 2021
18,195,683
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2022 31 78,160 2021 147,188
2018
2022
31 2022
31 10
1,535,562 2021 1,805,929 2022 31

10 1,535,562 2021

1,805,929
2018
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25
71,041 2021 131,000
72,656 2021 129,299

4.5 12

2018
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2022 31 2021 31

15,355,624 100.00 18,059,299 100.00

15,355,624 100.00 18,059,299 100.00
12

1970
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2022 2021 31

2022 2021 31

2021 2022 31

2022 31 2021 31
18,059,299 19,578,727
(1,515,205) (3,418,640)
(1,188,470) 1,899,212
15,355,624 18,059,299
(60, 646) 1,192,611
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2022 31

5.3 7.0
15,355,624

2021 31

5.3 7.0
18,059,299

2018
96
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2022 31
322,607 322,607
15,355,624 15,355,624
322,607 15,355,624 15,678,231
36,044 36,044
27,618 27,618
19,133 19,133
17,931 17,931
13,638 13,638
5,200 5,200
3,467 3,467
2,666 2,666
1,533 1,533
15,551,001 15,551,001
15,678,231 15,678,231

2021 31
305,227 305,227
18,059,299 18,059,299
305,227 18,059,299 18,364,526
22,750 22,750
23,300 23,300
17,929 17,929
16,365 16,365
6,223 6,223
72,974 72,974
3,154 3,154
4,148 4,148
2,000 2,000
18,195,683 18,195,683
18,364,526 18,364,526
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182,643

2022 29
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2022 31

Goldman Sachs FP 2018, 1.73000%

15,550,000 2024 30 15,416,270 15,355,624 98.74
15,416,270 15,355,624 98.74

15,416,270 15,355,624 98.74

195,377 1.26

15,551,001 100.00
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAY VAN TRUST

ATEME Fli | i

ASAT MAY 31, 2033
(Exprossed in United Stales dellars)

May 31. 2022 Py 31,2021

Asiels
Cash and cash equivokenis (Motes 2 and 73 5 360y 5 305,227
Financil assets at foir value through prodt or loss (Notes 3 and 73 15,355,604 18,058, 395
Total assets 15678231 18,364, 525
Equity {Mote )
Paid-in capital 15,328,927 16842618
Retumed camings 221,074 1 347 168
Total equity 15,551,001 18,193, 683
Linlalitiew
Investment munagement fee payable (Note d) K ekt
Andi fee payable EERTE 23300
Adminstration fee payubls (Note 45 19,133 2750
Trustee fee pavabile (Mole 4) 17931 17.929
Munsger fee payahle (Maote 4) 13,638 16,365
Agenl fee peyable (Nome 4) 3,200 6,223
Custedy foc payable (Mote 4) 1467 4,148
Distribastor fce payvable (Mote 4) 2656 L4
Oaher fee paveble 1,533 2000
Total ligb ey 127,230 168,843
Total equity and linbilities 5 15628231 5 1856 526
e —— | — e
Approved far i i behalf of FirstCaribbean Intemztional Bank ond Toust Company (Cayman) Limiied, not in
il individu pasity lely #s Trustee ta 1IST Prime Ove Fund (5Y) 2019-04, 3 series rust of DHAM Caymian
Trsst by i

DOOKHY ” Ct«x 29 o1l
Signatoiy . ’
RONMNIE CUTHBERT

sed 5 n.ll&or:?
Approved for Bwance on Hﬂm:mc rk and Trust Company Ltd., oot in its individual copacity but
sabely s Manager 1o USD Prime: an?nd (5% 2019-04, & series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by;
=

Karla Bodden -
Sinead Wagner

X Date: August 29 2022

The accompanying netes are an integral part of Uiese financial statements.

T
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LISD PRIME ONE FUND (533 2019-04

A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
STATEMENT OF COMPR IVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

{Expressed in United States dollars)

For the For the
yvear ended year ended
May 31,2022 Muay 31, 2021

Invesmment income/{losses)
Intzrest from fnancial assets a1 fair vahie through profic or loss 5 274,568 H 371,465
Met change in unrealised appreciation/[deprecintion) on. financial

agsets at fair value through profit or loss (1,253,257 Led3.158
et rezlised gains on financal asseis at far valee thiough proft

of loss i, THE 256,074

Net inves toent income/{losses) {913,503) 220,677
Expenses
Inwestment management fee (Mote 4) 19,412 6,897
Distributor fee (Note 4) 32,891 47,956
Audin fee 21,050 24,650
Adipinistration fee (Wote 4) 16,431 21,242
Trustee fee (Mote 4) 18,002 18,002
Marnager fee (Note 4) 12,338 15,001
Agent fee (Note d) 4,650 6,133
Custody fee (Note 4) 4,628 4,735
Ckher fees 4489 2,76l
Crpanizmtion cost - 3

Totl operating expens es 133,931 207,775

Net operating income/(losses) {1.047,834) 2,062 52

Total comprebens ive income/{(loss es ) ativi butable o

unitholder 5 47 854 s 2,052 903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

o
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(Expressed in United States dollars)

{Accumnplated
Deficits )y
Paid-in Capital Betained Earnings Total
Balance as at May 31, 2020 5 W4T £ {568 646) 19,696,134
Units redeemed during the vear (3.416,165) - (3416,165)
Distributions o unithelder (Mote 6) - {147,188) (147,188)
Total comprehensive gains{losses) for the vear - 2062902 2062502
Balance as ar May 31, 2021 ] 16848615 & 1347068 8§ 18,195,683
Units redeemed during the year {1.518,638) - (1,518,688)
Disteibwtions 1o unitholder (Note 6) - (78,160 (78,1607
Total comprehensive gains/(lesses) for the vear - (1,047 8345 (1,047834)
Balence as ar May 31, 2022 £ 15320927 % 21074 % 15,551,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.

i =
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LSh FRIME ONE FLND (S¥) 2018-04
A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDER MAY 31, 2022
(Expressad in Unased Stztes dollars)
For the For the
year ended yvenr ended
May 31,2022 ﬂ3]. 1021
Cash fows from aperating activities
Total comprehensive income/(losses) attributable to Unitholder s {1,047,834) £ 2062902

Adjustments Lo reconelic total comprehensive Beome/{losses ) attributable

to Unithekler to net czsh used in operating activities:

Proceeds from sabe of Anancial agsets at fair vale through profit or loss 1,585 304 IA1E.640
Met rezlised gaing on finencial aszets at fair value though profit or loes (G4, 786} {256,074)
Met change o pnrealsed {appreciationYdepreciation on financial assets at

fair velie though profit or Joss 1,253,257 £1,643,138)

Changes in assets and Babilities related to operations:
(DecreaselInerease in investment management fiee payable (36,530} 66,807
Increase in sudi fee payable 438 35
Deerzase in administration fee payable (3617} {1,885)
Increase/[Decrease) in trustee fee paynble 2 {1,898}
[Decrease in manager fiee payable (&7 {137}
Decrease in agent fee payable {1,023} {635)
Decrcase in custody fee payable (BRI} {43%)
Dxerease in distributor fee payahle {aE5) {1,778}
Decrease in other fee payable (4671 {36481
Met cash provided by/{used in) operating activities 1614228 3,639,103

Cash flows from fnaocing activities

Redemptions paid to Unitholder (1,515 688) (3416,165)
Distributions paid to Unitholder (78, 560 {147,188)
Met cash (used In)prosided by financing sctivities (1,5%6,848) (3,563,353}
Met change in cash and cash equivalents 17,380 75,750
Cash and ¢azh equvalents at begnning of year 305,227 229477
Casch and cash equivalents at end of year £ 122607 § 5227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HIME ONE 2 4
A SERIES TRL 1 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

L. Organiation

DILAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust™) i an exempted il trost estalilished nnder the laws of the Cayman Istands pursuant
to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 200 1. USD Prime One Fund (5%} 2019-04 (the “Class Fund™)
is a series trust of the Trast which commenced its operations on April 26, 20019, The Trust is licensed under the
Caymaen Islands Mufral Funds Act under section 4 (13(a) with effect from July 15,2011, The Trust's place of business
is 25 Main Street, P.O. Box 694, George Town, Grand Cayman KY 1-1107, Cayman Islands.

The Trust filed a securitics registration statement on March 15, 20019 on behall of the Class Fund pursuant o the
Financial Instrument Exchange Law with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau and a regisiration statement
pursuant to the Invesiment Trust Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

The investment objective of the Class Fund is o seek stable income and stabie appreciation of the Class Fund's assets.
Thi Clazs Fond will ohtain exposure to the Goldman Sachs -Select 1V Volatility Target Series 96 USD Excess Return
Srraregy, a rules-based indexed stratery developed by Goldmen Sachs Intermational as strategy sponsor,

5 t aceountin licies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finencial stafements are sel out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation: The finzncial siatements of the Class Fund have been prepared m accordance with International
Finsmeial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and financial lkabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cerfain critical 2ccounting
estimates, It also requires the Trosize (o exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund®s acconnting
poticies. The areas invelving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates
are significant 1o the financial statements are disclosed i Notes 2, 7 and 8.

Ali references to net assets througheut this docurent refer 1o eguity unless otherwise stated. Net assets per unit
information as disclosed in Note 5 has been determined as to1al assers less tomal liabilities divided by the number of
gutstanding units of cach ciass of paricipating unils,

()} Standards and amendments to existing standards effective June 1, 2021

There are oo standards, amendments to standards ot interpretations that are ¢ffective for anneal perieds beginning on
June 1, 2021 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

(h) Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued bot not effective for the financial year beginning June 1,
2021 and not early adopted

A number of new standards, emendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annval periods beginning

after June |, 2021, and have not been early adepted in préparing thess financial statements. Mone of these are expected
1o have a materizl effect on the financial statements of the Class Fud.
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USD PRIME ONE F17 1
A SERIES TRUST O { TRL!
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 37, 2022

Financial v rlogs: The Class Fund classifies its investments besed
on both the Class Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets, The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evabuated on a
fair value hasiz. The Class Fund iz primarily focased on fair value information and uses that information to assess the
assets’ performance and to make decisions. The contracteal cash flows of the Class Fund's debt securitics are solely
principel and interest, howsever, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows
por held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collzction of contracmal cash flows is only
incidental 1o achieving the Class Fund's business model’s objective, Consequently, all investments are measured at
fiair value through profit or loss.

Premiums and discounts are amortized on an effective interest vield method o the maturity of the investments 1o
which they relate.

Financial assets at fair value theongh profic or loss are those that are maneged and their performance evaluated on a
fair valpe basis in accordance with the Trust's documented investment stratesy. The Trust's policy iz for the
Invesiment Manager (Note 4} to evaluate the mformation about these financial assets and lishilities on a fair value
basis, together with other related financial information, for the purposes of making investimen! managemznt decisions,

Caszh and cash eguivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on dzmand and on shart notice and all deposits
with eriginal terms to maturity of not more than 3 months. AR of the Class Fund's cash and cash equivalent balance
a5 ol May 31, 2022 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Note 41

Expenses: Expenses are accoumted for on an accrual basis.

Interest from fingncial assets at fair value through profit or loss: Interest is recopnised on a time-proportionate
basis using the effective nterest method. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss nchudes

interest from debt securities.

Ineome taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman !slands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Island taxes payable by the Class Fund, As 2 result, no provision for income faxes hes been made in the
financial statements.

At May 31, 2022, the Clzss Fuad has measured its tex lishilities with respect to forsign capital gains taxes at nil.
However, there fs a risk that foreign tax authorities will begin seeking to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the
Class Fund, without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a retrospective basis. Any refrespective enforcement
mey result in a substantial lass to the Class Fund,

Distributions: Distributions 1o the unitholder are inchaded in the Sttement of Changes in Equity when they ane
approved by the Trustee (Note &),

Translation of foreipn corrency amonnts: Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dolkar are ranslated &t the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign currency income and
expenditiire items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Gains and losses on foreizn
currencies are ineluded in the Statement of Compreleasive Income in the period in which they arise. The Class Fund
does not isolate that portion of the resoles of operations resulting from chanpes in foreign exchange rates on
investments from fluctzations arising from chenges in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are included
with the net realised and unrealised gain{loss) on finzncial assets st fair viloe through profit or loss,
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued}

entation currency: liems included in the Class Fund's financizl statements are meastired using
the United States dollar (the “functional cumency™), as the Class Fund only mvests in one security denominated in
United States dollar, Tn addition, the Class Fund has adopted the United States dollar as its presentation currency,

Participating Units: The Class Fund issues wmits (Mote 5) which are redecmable at the holder’s option but are
classified as equity in accondance with the 1AS 32 amendment in 2009, Any distribution on such units is recognized
in the Statement of Changes in Equity, The Farticipating Uinits can be put back to the Class Fund by the holder at any
business day for cath equal (o 2 peaportionate share of the Class Fund's net assets.

3._Fi ir ¥ h h prafit gr boss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are comprized of:

My 31,2022 May 31, 2021
Amortised Cost Fair Value Amortized Cott Fair Viloe

Structured Mote 3 15416270 3 15355624 5 Inbo0688 5§ 18,059,299

Irwvesmient has a matority date of April 30, 2024 (2021: April 3¢, 2024) and foced interest rate of 1L.73% (2021 1.73%)
as of May 31, 2022, During the year, variable interest of 0.00%6 (2021:0.37%%) has been received.

4, nis and transaciions

Trustee

FirstCaribbean Inemational Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited is the Trustee of the Trust pursusnt to the
Trust Deed dated June 29, 2011 (as may and amended from time to time) and the Class Fund pursuant to the
Supplemental Trust Deed dated on darch 12, 2009, The Trustee in conjunction with the Manager is responsible for
the Trust's wdministration and management, which includes the responsibility for disribution and redemption of units
in the Trust. The Trustes and Manaper have appointed Mizuho Bank (USA) to provide the day-to-day administration
of the Class Fund.

The Trustes ks entithed 10 receive, out of the asszts of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.01% per annum of the Fee
Amount which is calculated by multiplving the initial issue price by the sumber of unils in jssoe o the relevam
valuation day, subject to a quarterly minimurmn fee of USS3,750. The Trustee's fees will be calculated and acerued
dzily and payable znnually in arrears.

Manager
Cueensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (fhe “Manager™} is the Manager of the Trost pursaant to the Trust Deed

dated hune 29, 2011 {as may be amended from time to time) apd the Class Fund pursuant to the supplemental Trust
Deed dated on March 12, 2019,

16~
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USD PRIME ONE FUND [5Y) 2019-04
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

4. ificant agreemen ]

Manager {(continued)

The Manager prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and 1ssue and repurchase of the unitg of the Class
Fund, The Manager is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, @ fee ai the rate of 0.0 1% per annum of the
Fee Amount, subject to a quarterly minimum fee of USE3,750. The Manager's fe2 will be calculated and accrued daily and
payable annually in amears,

Administration

The Trustzs and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with Mizohe Bank (L7SA) dated
July 5, 2011 and amended on April 19, 2009, under which that party acts a5 Administrator to the Class Fund. For
providing adminiswation services to the Class Fund, the Administrator is entitled to receive, oul of the esses of the
Class Fund, a fee 2 the rate of 0.10% per annum of the Fee Amount. The Administrator will alse be entitled 1o a one-
time sel-up fee of 320,000 and a foced annual fee of $2,000 for providing AEQI compliance reporting services, The
Administrator's fee will be calonlated and sccrued daily and payable annually in arrears.

Investment manager

Assel Management One Co,, Lid,, (the *nvestment Manager™) has been appointed as Investment Manager to the Trust
pursuzant to the Investment Management Agreement dated Tuly 8, 2011 and amended on April 26, 2019, pursuant to
which the Investment Manager is autherized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of nssets in each
accound, with full aumherity and at s diseretion,

The Envestment Manager is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, & fee a1 a rate of op te 0,50% per
annum of the Fee Ameunt. Such fee may be lowered depending on the Fee Amount, The Investment Manager's fee
will be calculated end scerued daily and pavable annually in amears. Io addition, the Investrment Manager will be
entitled o receive, out of the asseis of the Class Fund, 2 performance fee equivalent to 10% of the toial payments from
the varizble rate coupon received for the account of the Class Fund, and payable anmually within 60 days after the
variable rate coupon has been declared or; i earlier, on ermination of the Class Fund.

Custedian

Mizuho Bank (USA3 (the “Custodian™) has been appointed a5 (he Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustes pursuant
to a custody agreement dated Juby 5, 2011 and amended on April 19, 2019, The Custodian is entitled to receive, out
of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee al the rate of 0.02% per annuim of the Fee Amount. The Costodian is also entitled
10 & transaction fee in accordance with its normal scale. The Cusiedian’s fee will be calculated and accreed daily and
payable anmoally in anrears,

Agent

Cho BMarch 12, 2019, the Apeni Company Agresment was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trast Company,
Ltd. and Goldman Sacha Japan Co., Lid. {the “Agent”}. The Agent Company Agreement is an agresment pursisant to
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospeciuses regarding the units of the
Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers” Associstion {“JSDA™), publicizs the net asset value per unit and submit
the dociements such as the financial statements and odher documents 1o the JSDA. The Agent Company 15 entitled to
receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annum of the Fee Amount, The Agent
Company”s fee will be caleuinted and acerued and payable annually in arrears.

Distributor

Om March 12, 2019, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agresment was entered between Queensgate Bank and
Trust Company Lid, and Daiwa Securities Co., Ltd. (“*Daiwa™), under which Daiwa acts as Distributor of units in
Fepan subject to terms and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class fund, a fae
of up to 0.50% per annum of the Fee Amaount which is based on the initiat issue price muliplied to the number of
ugits in issue at the relevant valuation day. The distributor’s fees will be accrued daily and payable monthly in
BITeArs.
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2. Einirs in fesye

Subscriptions for Units in aggregate must 1ol exceed USED billion, The Units are subscribed at the purchase price of
USE100 per Unit. A sales charge of up to 2%, plus any applicable t2x thereon, may be added to the purchase price
per Unit, The sales chasge, it applicable, will be payable to the Distrilaztor, Following the expiry of the initial offer
period of April 23, 2009, additional Units will not be available for subscription.

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the unitholder on each dealing day af a redemption prics
eqital ta the nat asset value per unit a5 determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption natice has been
received by the Trustee not less than 1 business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

Far the For the
year ended year ended
May 31,2022 Wiay 31, 2021
Units issued at beginning of vear 170,945 202,962
Uit redeemed during the vear (14,6510 (32,017
Uits issued at end of yoar 156,254 170,943
Het Asset Vaklue per Unit 5 03,40 £ 10644

Asat May 31, 2022, the Class Fund had $15,551,001 (2021: $18,1%5,633) of puttable financial instruments classified
a5 equity,

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units. In accordance with the ehjectives outlined in Rote
and the risk managemeant pelicies in Note 7, the Class Fund endervours to invest the subscriptions received fom
umitholder into appropriate investments whils maintaining sufficient Giguidity to meet redemptions, with such liquidiy
being augmanted by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary.

. Dhstribticn

The current distribution palicy of the Class Fund iz to pay in respect of each distribution period an annuat distribution
following cach distribution record date, The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of distributions in such
amourts, if any, as shall be determined by the Investment Manager equivalent to the amount received from the fived
raie coupen phus the ameount received from the varishle sate coupon, if any, after deducting the performance fee, All
distribution amotnts will be paid in cash on the applicable distribution payment date.

Pruring the pericd ended May 31, 2022, the Class Fund declared distributions o the unitholder ameunting to 578,160
(2021 §147,158).

T anagerment

Sirategy in using finangisl instroments:

The Class Fund's aclivities expasa it 1o a variety of financial riske: market risk (incloding price risk, curraney risk and
interest rate risk), eredit risk and Liquidity risk, The Class Fund's overall risk management programme fetuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potentinl adverse effects an the Class Fund's financial
performance.

o2 =

96/187



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7 a ent tinne

All securities investments present & risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capitel on debt securities i limited
to the fair vahie of those positions.

Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to price volatility risk. Changes in imderest rates affect the prices of bomds and debentures.
Increase in interest rates generally canses decreases in the prices of bonds and debentures and therefore decreases in the
Met Asset Valee per Unit, The total amount of the variable rate coupon varies based on the rate of return of the reference
index. If the rate of retumn is negative, the variable rate coupon will be redused to zero and the retum on the notes will be
fimited to the fived rate coupon enly. Even if the macket interest rates and the credit status of the issuer of the notes,
Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018, does not change, if the 1otal amouwnt of the variable rate coupon is expected 1o
dectime due to o deterioration of marke! conditions where the izsuer finances of, due to a decrease of the rate of reum of
the reference index, the notes” price and the Net Asset Value per Unit will decline.

The Tnvestment Manager manages the Class Fund's invesiment strategy by mogitoring the fluctuation of ihe rate of
return of the reference index. A sensitivity malysis has been performed to assess the impact of movements in the
market prices of structures notes as at May 31, 2023, If the market prices of the structured notes at May 31, 2022 had
increased by 10 with all other varigbles hetd constant, this would have increased net assets atiributable to unitholder
by approvimately 51,535,562 (2021: §1,805,92%). Conversely, if the market prices of the structere notes a2 May 31,
2022 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net asseis atiribugable to unitholder by approximately
$1,535,562 (2021: $1.805,929).

The Investrent Manager invests substantially all of the procesds for the issuance of units in the structured node issued
by a single issuer, Goldman Seches Financinl Products 2008, fn the event that risks regarding the structured note
materializes, the Class Fund will be significanly affected and the Net Azset Valoe per Unit will decline significantly,
eompared to the case of investment trosts with a diversified investment portfolio.

| t ;

The struchured note in which the sssets of the Class Fuad may be invested or o which the rales-based indexed strategy
miy be exposed may be subject to price fluctuations througheut their tervor that s, the period from the time of their
sceisition by fhe Investment Manager until the time of their realisation depending vpon interest rare fluciations
during such period, In general, a5 interest rates in the relevant country fall, a note’s or other debe security’s price will
rise, and 23 inferest rates in the relevant countey rise, 8 note’s or ofher debt seconty's price will fall, When intecest rates
fluctuate, the remaining fenor of a debt security including a note may be used as an indication of the degree of change
ins the market price of such debt sscurity. All else being equal, the longer its remaming tenor, the greater the change
will be in the market price of a debt security including 2 note for a given movement in interest rates, The Net Asset
Value may fncmate as a result of the aferementioned changes on the basis that the assets of the Class Fund and the
rules-based indexed strategy comprise debt securities having differing terms to maturity.

The Class Fund may be subject te a greater risk of rising interest rates than would normafly be the case due io the
current perind of historically low rates and fhe effect of petential government fiscal policy initiztives and resulting
raarkel reaction to those mitiatives. Longer-eom dabi secusities are generally more sensitive 1o interest rafe changes,
Rising interest rates also may lengthen the duration of debt securities with call features, since exercise of the cafl
begomes less Iikely a3 interest rates rise, which in tum will make the scurities more sensitive o changes in interest
rales and result in even steeper price declines m the event of further interest rate increases. Interest rale risk may be
incrensed by the Class Fund's invesmuent in imverse floaters and forward commitments because of the leveraged nsture
of these investments.

During pericds of very low or negative intérest rates, the Class Fund may be unable to maintain posilive refurns.
Interest rafes in many parts of the world, mcluding the United Stares, are at historically low jevels. Very low or
negative interest rates may magnify interest rate risk. Chenging interest rates, ineluding rates that fall below zero, may

13-
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5Y) 2019-i4
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

7. Financial risk mana, ent i
1 4 risk {continued]:

have unpredictable effects on markets, mey result m heightened market volatility snd may detract from the
performance of the Class Fund,

As o May 31, 2022, if the interest rate on USD-denominated assets had been lowered by 23 basis points with all ather
variables held constant, the increase in net assets stiribotable to the wnitholder would have been $T1,041 (2021:
£131,000), arising substantially from the increase in the fair value of the debt security. If interest rates had risen by 25
bagis points, e decrease in net assets attribatable to the unitholder would have been $72,656 (2021: $12%,29%).

The Class Fund bas direct exposure 10 interest rate changes on the valuation and cash fMlows of ils interest bearing
assels and lishilities. The above sensitivity analysiz may not fuily indicate the total effect on the Class Fund's net
assets attributable to the unitholder of future movements n intenest rajes.

Befersnce stralegy risk:

Risks refated 1o the reference strategy which undeslies the Class Fund's invesetment in the struciuned nofe includes
volatility and sirategy risk and dilution. The reference strategy has a voletility adjustment feanire which aims to
provide a notienal volstility-controlled expasure ro the underlying strategy. This is achieved by perindically mcreasing
or decreasing the exposure of the reference stratepy 1o the underlying strategy, based on the historical realised volatility
of the asset over o leokback period of approximately 12 months relative to a pre-determined volatility target of 4.5%.
An increase in e realised volatility related to the underlying strategy might decrease the exposure of the reference
strategy to that underlying stratepy and vice verss. The future realised volatility of the underlying strategy might differ
from the historical realised velatility of that underlying strategy snd as such, the weight of the underlying stratezv and
the performance of the reference strategy might be different if it was calenlated based on the futore realised volatility
rather than the historical realised volatiliny.

Investments in the reference strategy might be subject to dilution, such that the interests in those investments might
e limited and might be subject to dilution if the reference volatility as specified in the relevant underlying sirategy
supplement exceeds the volatility terget, such that investors in products linked 10 the reference strategy might not
benefit fully from mcreases in the value of the underlying stratzgy. Dilution means that the return or loss on an
investment is subject to a multiplier decreasing exposure (o such investment and reducing the volatility and risk of
Iz should the value of such investment decling, but reducing the potential gain should the valwe of such investment
increase, Investors should be aware that if the valee of the undsrlying strategy of the reference strategy increases or
decreases, an investment linked 1o the reference sirategy might not have the same magnbiude ef increased or decreased
value as the underlying strategy of the reference strategy.

The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that eme party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
lass for the other party by feiling to discharge an obligation.

The rain concentration to which the Class Fund is expesed arises from the Class Fund's nvestreents in debt securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed 1o counterperty credit rizk on trading derivative products, <ash and cash equivalents
and other receivable balances, The Class Fund se2ks to mitigale ils exposure to credit risk by placing its eash balances
and trensacting its securities activity with large financial nstitutions.
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T cment (continue
it i inued

The Class Fand invests i debt instruments and the rules-based indexed strategy iz 2lso exposed to debt instruments.
In the event that an issuer goes into default or is likely to go (o default, the price of such issuer's securities fhuctuate. The
Tssuer has invested iis issuance procesds into its underlving assets, inchiding sentor bonds issued by The Goldman Sachs

Group Inc, and performance-linked securities issued by Goldman Sachs Finence Corp International including substinie
assets replacing such securities in the event of, or if there is @ posstbility of, carly redemption, termination, 2n event of
default, 2 write down or restrachering or a tax event. The notes are issued by Gobdman Sachs Financial Prodiscts 2018 and
guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group Inc, If the creditworthiness of underhying assets or the Guarantor were fo decline
significantly duoe to, among others, detericration i performance or poor management perfommance, or if it were o go
banknzpt, the et Asset Valne per Unit could be significantly affected and decline significantly.

Portfolio by rating category for each class of debr securities is as follows:

Mlay 31, 2022 Wiy 31,2021
%o of S of
— FairViglue  Porgfelio _ FaicValue  Porfelie
Structured Node
M rating 5 15,355,624 1Wwooe: 8 18,059,299 10000

5 15355624  100,00% 5 1E.059.290  100.00%

Al transactions are setiled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The visk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will i) if either party fails to meet its obligation,

The Class Fund mensures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, expesure st defoult and
Inss given default. Management considers both historical analyzis and forward looking information in determining
any expected credit loss. Management considers the probability of default to be remote 23 the structured notes ane
guaranteed by the Goldman Sachs Group Inc. with o S&P credit rating of BEB+ for long-tenn debt, As a result, no loss
alivweance has been recopnised based on 12-month expected credit lesses as any such impairment would be whelly
insignificant to the Class Fund.

In accerdance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager moniiors the Class Fund's credit pesition on a
daily basis.

Liguidity rigk:
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able 1o generate sufficient cash resources to settbe its
obligations in fall as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

In the event of market tarmoil or a significant deterioration in the creditworthiness of igswers or other similar siuations,
ligpaicdity of the stractured notes may be significantiy lost and the sale price of the strectured notes may deviate from the
prices generally expected, causing significant decreass of the Net Asset Value per Unit and losses of investors, In addition,
in the event that the credit risk of the issuer materializes, the struchured nodes may not be dispesed and therefore the
Investment Marager may ceass scoepting reporchase requests for Units,

Participating Unite ave redeemed on demand at the option of the unitholder. However, the Trustee does not foresee

2152
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USD P NE FUNM 0
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
NOTES TO_FINAN NT:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022
Z._Financial risk management (continyed)

Liouidiy risk(contiausd)

that this contractual mammrity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these
instruments typically retain them fer the meditm o long term,

As at May 31, 2022, all other Kabilities of the Class Fund had a contracteal materity of less than one month. The
Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's quidity pesition on an engoing basiz.

Custody risk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where eustodial and/or senlement systems are not fully
developed. The aeseis of the Class Fund which are raded in such markets and which have been entrasted to sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of such sub-custedians s necessary, may be exposed (o certain risks, Such
risks include, but pre net limited to, & non-true delivery versns payment seitlement, a physical market, and as a
consequence the circulation of ferged securities, peor infarmation in regards to corporate actions, registration process
thet impacts the availability of the securities. lack of zppeopriaste legalffiscal nfrastructure and lack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository.

The Class Fund maintains & custody sccount with its prime broker and primary custodian, Mizuho Bank (LISA),
(“Mizuhe™). Although the Trustes menitors Mizuho, and belizves that they are appropriate custodians, there is no
guarantee that Mizuho, or any other custodion that the Class Fund may use from time to time, will not become insolvent.
While hoth the U.5. Bankmpicy Code and the Securities Invester Pratection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer
property in the event of a failure, insolvency or Bquidation of a broker-dealer, there i no certainty that, in the event
of a Failure of 3 broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incur losses due fo its
assels being wnavailable for a peried of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Becwsuse
substantially all of the Class Fund's assets zre custodied with one custodian, such losses could be significant and could
mitterialty impair the ability of the Class Fund to achizve its investment ohjective.

Fajr Value Disclosures.

In accordanee with IFRS 13, the Clasz Fund is required to classify fair valoe mexsurements using @ fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hisrarchy has the following
levels:

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markers for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

+  nputs cther than quoted prices incleded within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly
(that is, as prices) ar indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable mputs) (level
EN

The level in the fair vahie hizrarchy within which the fair valus messurement is categorized in its entirety is detenmined
1 the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valie measurement ia its entirery, For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed apainst the fair value measurement in ite entirety. 1T a fair value messurement
uses ohservable inputs that require significant adjnstment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Jevel
1 measnrement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurercent in its entirety requires
judgment, considering facters specific to the asset or liability.

=16 -
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T PRI ONMNE FUND (5Y) 2019-
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR FNDED MAY 31, 2022

T ancial risk mana
Fair Valoe Disclosures (continugd):

The derermination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Clasz Fund
considers obeervable data 1o be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Asat May 31, 2022 and 2021, al! the financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss wers classified as level
3

Investments classified within level 3 have significant uncbservable inpars, as they wads infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices are not available for these securities, the Class Fund has used valoation techniques to derive the
fair value as ot May 31, 2022 and 2021,

The following tzble incldes a roll-forward of the ameunts for the period from June 1, 2021 to May 31, 2022 for
tvestments classified within Level 3. The classification of en investmeat within Level 3 is based upon the significance
of the unohservable inputs to the overall fair value measurement. However, Level 3 investments may include, m
addition e the nse of unobservable inputs, observable inputs {that is, inputs that are actively quoted ar can be validated
to market sources and data); accordingly, the gain and loss in the table beflow may include changes in fair value due
in part 1o changes in observable inputs that are pert of the valuation methedology,

For the Fuor the
year ended vear ended
Structured Note May 31, 2022 May 31, 2021
Opening balancs 5 18,059,299 $ 19 5TRTIY
Proceads from sale of Investments in securiibes (1,515,205) (3,418 640)
Net gains{losses) recognised in fair valoe on financial
assets at fair viace throngh profit or loss (1,188,470} _ lBea22
Closig baianoe £.133555%
Unrealised (depreciationjappreciation
oa financial assets at fair valne throwgh profit or loss 5 (60,646% ] 1,192,611

There were no iransfers berween levels during the vear.

The following table summarizes the quantitetive infonnation about the valoation technigues and onobservable inputs
uzed for Level 3 investments:

As of May 31, 2022
Falr Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Structured note § 15355864 Option pricing medel Verlailiny 5.3~7.0r%
P
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Lsiy 4
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022
7 nitmu
Eair Value Disclosures (continued):
As of May 31, 2021

Fair Value Valuation Techuigue Unohservahle Inputs Range
Structured note £ 18059259 Option pricing mode] Yolasiliny 5.3~T7.0%

The investments in securities (“Notes™) are 1ssued by Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018 and guaranteed by The
Goldman Sachs Group inc,

Their price is shown as a dirty price and interest is determined by the remm on the Reference Sirategy which intends
to adjust the level of volatility of the Goldman Sachs i-Select IV Series 96 USD Excess Refurn Strategy (the
“Underlying Strategy™) by rebalancing the basket weight 1o the Underlving Strategy on a daily basis.

The vaiue of the Underlying Strategy is caboulated based on the perfermance, calculated by the weighted average of
the value of each asset,

The Motes provide a fixed and variable rate return. The fived rate coupon is based on the market interest rates and the
credit status of the issuer of the Motes. The variabls rate coupon 15 based on the performance of the Underlying Strategy
index except that the variable cougron rate cannot be negative. As n result, the varisble rate coupon functions as a call
protection agaimst negative returms in the Underlying Strategy.

The valuztion of the fived remrn pertion of the Notes includes observable inpuis (e USD i_n_teml rate, eqc. ). _T‘u:
valuntion of the variable rate portion of the Motes includes certain anohservable inputs {volatility of the call option)
that when censidered in totality, Jead us te conclude that the Motes shoubd be identified as level 3.

A change in each mput variable disclosed in the above will result in 2n increase or decrease in the fair velue of the
investment.

alog bui for which fair value is dischosed

Investments are carried at fuir valoe. The carrving values of all other financial assets and lsbilities are carried at
amortised cost; their camying vatues are a reasonable approximation of fair valuwe.

Cagh and cash equivaients include cach in hand, deposits held with banks and other shorf-tzem investments inan active
rmarket, Cash and cash equivalents have been determined osing level 1 inpurs.

Receivable from investments sold and other receivables inclode the contractal amounts for settlement of irades and
other obligations dus to the Class Fund., Paysble for investments purchased and accrmals represent the conractual

amounts and obligations dus by the Class Fund for settlement of nades and expenses, These receivables and payables
have been determined using level 2 inputs.

S 1R -
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USD PRIME ONE I 1004
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRIIST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

viloe by ‘hich fair valoe is disclosed {continued

The puttable value of Participating Units is caleutated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
ligbilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's governing decuments, These Parficipating Units are
aot traded on an active marker. A demand feature Bs atiached 1o these units, as they are redeemable at the holders”
cption and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proporiienate share of the Class
Funds net asset value attributable to the Thait Class (Notes 2 and 7).

b necial instruments by cate
Financial assets at

Financipl assets at  fair value through
May 31, 2022 smortised cost  profit or less Tatal
Assets ms per statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents £ 322607 3 - L3 33607
Financial assets at far value through profit or bess - 15,355,624 15,355,624

£ 322607 3 15,355, 634 ] 15,67H.231
Liabilities s per statement of financial position
Investment management fee payabls s 6044 g - 5 15,044
Agidit fee payable 27618 - 27618
Administrtion fee payable 19,133 - 19133
Trustee fee payable 17.831 - 17036
Manager fee payahle 13,638 - 13,638
Agent fee payable 5,200 - 3200
Custody fee payable 3467 - 3467
Diztributor fee payable 2660 - 2 666
Other fee payable 1,533 - 1,533
Met assets attributable ta Unitholders _ 15,851,001 - 15,551,001

5 15.678,23] 3 - 5 15,678,231

=19
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8. Financial insiruments by eategory
Financial assets af

Fimoneial sssets at  falr wviloe through
May 31, 2021 amrtiged cost profit or lss Total
Assels as per statemeni of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents g 305,227 5 - 5 305,227
Financial assets at fair valug through profit or bess - 18,054,299 18,055,299

$ 305,327 5 18,059.299 b 18,364,526
Lianbilities as per staternent of flnancial position
Adpanistration fee payable 5 By 8§ - 5 2,750
Audit fee pavable 3300 . 23,300
Trustee fee payable 17,929 . 17,529
Manager fee payable 16,3565 - 16,365
Agent fee payable 6,223 - 623
Investment management fee pavabls TLOT4 - TN
Distribitor fee payahie 3,154 . 3054
Custody fee payable 4,148 - 4,148
Cither fee payable 2,000 - 2,000
Net asscts artrbratable fo Unitholders 18,195,683 - 18,195,685

- 18,364,526 5 - 1 18,364,506

10, Commitments

In the normal course of business, the trustee and'or Manager (“Management™) on behalf of the Trust entérs
into contracts thet contain & variety of representations and warmanties and which provide genecral
indemnifications. Management's maximum exposure under these armangements is unknown, a8 this would
invalve funre claims that may be made against Management that have not yet eccurred, however, based on
experience, Management expects the risk of loss io be remate,

11, Subsequent events

From June 1, 2022 through August 29, 2023, there were subscriptions and redemptions of SMil and $182,643,
respactively,

An owtbreak of a novel corapavirus (*COVID-19") has developed mto a global pandemic and has resulied in closing
borders, quarantines, disruptions to supply chains and customer activity, a5 wiell as general concem and uncertaingy.
Thiz pandemic may result in substantial market volatility and may adversely impact the prices and liquidity of the
Class Fund's investments,

Subsequent events were evaluated through August 29, 2022, the date the financial statements were available 1o be
issued, and there were no subsequent events that require adjustrent to, or disclosure in, the fimancial statements.
However, al this time, the Trust is unable 10 reasonably estimare the impact on it future financial statements.

- 20 -
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5%} 2019-04
SE 5
L iT Li
T 1
AMOHRTIZED FATR = OF
DUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALLE NET ASSETS
STRUCTURED NOTES
15,550,000 Goklman Sachs FP 2618, 17300055

due Apedl 30, 2024 £ 15416270 §F 15355624 0F. 74%%

15416270 15,355,624 O, 7455

TOTAL VALUEQF INVES TMENTS 5 15416270 15355624 S98. 749

OTHER ASSETS NET OF LIABILTTTES 195,377 1.26%

NET ASSETS $ 15551001 100.00%%

iy
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2022

15,280,618.93 2,212,786,427

452,059.72 65,462,768

14,828,559.21 2,147,323,659

152,554

97.20 14,076
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2022 2,000,000 8,962
10,000,000 2,000,000
2022 5,794,564 3,911
One
2022 24 340

500
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131

23 103

2022 30
144 .81
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020

7,747,717 1,121,947 9,684,838 1,402,461
416,812 60,359 1,099,270 159,185
599,076 86,752 443,517 64,226
12,287 1,779 13,124 1,900
56,793 8,224 62,528 9,055
8,832,685 1,279,061 11,303,277 1,636,828
136,966 19,834 156,560 22,671
8,969,651 1,298,895 11,459,837 1,659,499
3,183,319 460,976 5,452,331 789,552
434,514 62,922 506,225 73,306
364,045 52,717 245,611 35,567
3,981,878 576,616 6,204,167 898,425
2,000,000 289,620 2,000,000 289,620
2,987,773 432,659 3,255,670 471,454
4,987,773 722,279 5,255,670 761,074
8,969,651 1,298,895 11,459,837 1,659,499

110/187



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
41,671 6,034 63,993 9,267
386 56
41,671 6,034 63,607 9,211
4,697,515 680,247 4,572,825 662,191
221,622 32,093 244,788 35,448
38,400 5,561 38,400 5,561
4,957,537 717,901 4,856,013 703,199
4,999,208 723,935 4,919,620 712,410
10 2,646,420 383,228 2,643,805 382,849
1,006,565 145,761 1,018,357 147,468
361,491 52,348 361,491 52,348
42,629 6,173 47,053 6,814
10,000 1,448
4,067,105 588,957 4,070,706 589,479
932,103 134,978 848,914 122,931
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2021 2020 12 31
2,000,000 289,620 2,406,756 348,522 4,406,756 638,142
848,914 122,931 848,914 122,931
2,000,000 289,620 3,255,670 471,454 5,255,670 761,074
932,103 134,978 932,103 134,978
(1,200,000) (173,772) (1,200,000) (173,772)
2,000,000 289,620 2,987,773 432,659 4,987,773 722,279
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
932,103 134,978 848,914 122,931
42,629 6,173 47,053 6,814
974,732 141,151 895,967 129,745
682,458 98,827 (47,051) (6,813)
(155,559) (22,526) 48,332 6,999
837 121 (6,686) (968)
5,735 830 12,704 1,840
(2,269,012) (328,576) (1,473,722) (213,410)
(71,711) (10,384) 27,467 3,977
118,434 17,150 11,848 1,716
(714,086) (103,407) (531,141) (76,915)
(23,035) (3,336) (26,100) (3,780)

(1,200,000) (173,772)

(1,937,121) (280,514) (557,241) (80,694)
9,684,838 1,402,461 10,242,079 1,483,155
7,747,717 1,121,947 9,684,838 1,402,461

749 108
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2021 2020 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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15

2021 2020 12 31
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IFRS 2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31

16 12
2021 2020 12 31

12
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2021 2020
3,247,717 4,184,838
4,500,000 5,500,000
7,747,717 9,684,838
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
469,711 310,757
129,365 132,760
599,076 443,517
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91

181

360

180

360

2021 2020
25,716 1,560
75,730 52,100
76,634 63,427

178,080 117,087

2021 2020

(10, 000)
10,000
2021 2020
3,183,319 5,452,331
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2019 12 31 741,880 372,854 1,114,734
26,100 26,100
2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035
2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2019 12 31 657,498 279,723 937,221
25,169 21,884 47,053
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629
2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
2020 12 31 85,313 71,247 156,560
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966
2021 2020
10,000,000
2,000,000 2020 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
2021 12 31
1,200,000 2020

Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
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Tilly Nominees Limited
Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Directors Limited

Tilly Secretaries Limited

2021 12 31

12 31

12 31

143,920

2020

975,610

143,660
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2021 2020

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

2020 975,610
2021 2020
416,812 1,099,270
987 477
760,884 618,720
3,932 8,544
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
2011 31
2021 12 31

Nominee
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2021 12 31
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47.76 2020 41
2021 2020
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2021
2020 12 31
2021
0.01 0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005 0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
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2020
0.01  0.15 4,184,838 5,500,000 9,684,838
5.26 1,099,270 1,099,270
443,517 443,517
13,124 13,124
5,740,749 5,500,000 11,240,749
0.004  0.005 5,452,331 5,452,331
506,225 506,225
5,958,556 5,958,556
(217,807) 5,500,000 5,282,193
2021 12 31 30 2020 30
1,444 2020 505
30 2020 30
30 1,444 2020 505
2021 12 31 30 2020 30
13,500 2020 16,500
30 2020 30
30 13,500 2020 16,500
2021 2020 12 31 30
2020
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2020

12

13

14

2020 12 31

5,456

2021

2021

2022
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2021 2020 12 31
54,556 54,556
56,638 (1,445) 55,193
10 2021 12 31
2020 5,519
2020
15
2020 12 31
400,000 500,000
2020 12 31
22
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2021 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Casgh and cash equivalents (MNate 3) $ TTATTT $ 0684838
Due from clients (Naote 8) 416,812 1,009,270
Cliant accounts receivable (Mote 4) 599,076 443 517
Other receivables 12,287 13,124
Prepaid expenses 56,793 62,528
8,832,685 11,303,277
MOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Note &) 136,966 156,560
$ 8,969,651 £ 11,459,837
ILITIES AND SHA ER' ITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors' accounts (Notes 5 and 9) $ 3183219 § 5452331
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note ) 434 514 506,225
Fees received in advance 364,045 245611
3,981,878 6,204 167
SEHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Mote 7) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings __ 20887TT3 3,255 870
4,887,773 5255 670
$ 8,969,651 § 11,459,837

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

INTEREST INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE
MNET INTEREST INCOME

OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fees (Naote 8)
Miscellaneous
Rental income

TOTAL INCOME

COPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Note 10)
Administration (Note %)
Rent expense (Note 8}
Depreciation (Mota §)
Expected credit loss (Mole 4)

MNET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ei‘l 2020

$ 41,671 5 63,993
- 386

41,671 63 607
4,697,515 4,572,825
221,622 244 788
38,400 38 400
4,957,537 4,855,013
4,999,208 4,819,620
2,848 420 2 643 BOS
1,006,565 1,018,357
361,491 361,491
42,629 47,053

10,000 .
4,067,105 4,070,706

5 932103 5  sdegn4

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

Total

Retained shareholder's

Share capital eamings equity

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 2000000 F 2406756 § 4406758
Met income and comprehensive income - B48 014 848,914
Dividends {Nate T) = = =
Balance at December 31, 2020 2,000,000 3,255,670 5,255,670
Met income and comprehensive income - 832,103 932,103
Dividends (Note 7) - (1,200,000) (1,200,000
Balance at December 31, 2021 § 2000000 $ 2887773 § 4987773

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in United Stales dollars)

2021 2020
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income % 932,103 5 848,014
Adjisstments for tems not affecting cash:
Depreciation 42,629 47,053
974,732 B25 987
Changes in operaling assets and habilities:
Due from clients 6B2.458 (47051}
Client accounts receivable {155,559) 48332
Other receivables B37 (6.686)
Prepaid expenses 5,735 12,704
Depositors” accounts (2,269.012) {1,473,722)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (T1,711) 27 ABT
Fees received in advance 118,434 11,848
(714,086) {531,141}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assels (23,035) {26,100)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (1,200,000) -
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,937,121) {557 ,241)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,684,638 10.242.079
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 7477 % §.6B4.B38
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for inferest 5 - b 749
Sea noles to consolidated Fnancial statements
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars)

1. THE COMPANY ANDITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Lid, ("QBTC") and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. (the *Parent”), a company also incorporated in the
Cayman |slands.

On January 2, 2008, QBTC undertook a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertcok a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities, On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Lid. and is licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
icense and Mulual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Istands Monetary Authonty ("CIMA™).

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempling it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present ime,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidianes. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;
+ s exposed, or has nghts, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Company reassesses whether of not it controls an investee il facts and circumslances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control isted above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases
whan the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains confrol until the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation, Refer to
Mate & for other disclosures relating to the subsidiaries,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
azsumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and Eabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporting perod, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalens include cash and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three
months ar less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given to clients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at variable rates, Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generatled from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision Tor expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behall of cients do not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects (o recover
once billad.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credif losses in receivable balances, These are based upon management’s knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depredation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assels 1o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (f any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
ned identified any assels for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beaning instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yvield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

« directorship, trustee, management and cther similar services provided to clients,

+ miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
clents in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being pravided,
and

= rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration thal the Company is conltracted to receive from ils
chents and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its chents. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted penod of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple

senvices are provided o a single client, the revenues generated from each lype of service are
recognised separately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Revenue recognition (confinued)

tiscellansous income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's cverhead and
fees charged to clients for miscellaneous senvices such as copy senvices for meetings or courier costs.
Desbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services. Fees charged to dients for miscellaneous sernvices are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on & contract.

Foreign currency transiation

The Company’s presantation currency is the United States dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated info United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. Forelgn curmency
transactions and income and expense items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses ansing from transkation are included in the consolidated
slaternents of comprehensive income.

Assetls under administration

Securnities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or Bduciary capadity are not
incheded in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised in the Company’s statemeant of financial position
when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Finangal assets
and financial iabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characterstics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assels and abiliies held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the fnancial asset and substantially all of the feks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial Rabilities are derecognised when tha Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
losses. No provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2021
and 2020,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to Btigation and claims in the narmal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which i= based on the advice from the Company’s [awyers,
no provisions are required at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lessee recognizes assets and Babilities for all lease arangements unless the
termis 12 months or less o the underlying asset has a low value, Due o the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Mote 9) existing as at and during the years ended Decemnber 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consolidated statements
of carmprehansive income.

New and revised IFRS standards in izsue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainfy

The Company makes estimales and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on histonical experence and other factors including
expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the crcumstances. The key areas
of judgemeant or estimaticn are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts recervable frorm clients and due from clients, The expected useful
economic ves of fived assels are based on prior experence of similar assats, Chent accounts receivable
and due from cients are measured as either a 12 month or lifetime ECL based on credit risk
considerations,

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2 __ 2020
Call deposits s 3247717 § 4184838
Short-term fixed deposits 4,500,000 5,500,000
$  774TTT s 9884838

Shaort-term fixed deposits as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 mature within three months fromthe ariginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

4, CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

_—2er 2020

Fee Income recalvablas s 469,711 -1 310,757
Receivables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 129,365 132,760
Less: provision for expected credil losses = -

5 590,076 5 443,517

Fee income recaivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provesion for expected credit loszes as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired
— 2 — 2030

81 to 180 days 5 25,718 ] 1,560
181 to 360 days 75730 52,100
Cwver 360 days 76,634 83,427
Total - past due but nat impaired 5 178,080 5 117,087

Mowvaments in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 5 - -3 -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts writlen off during the year as uncollectible {10.000) -
Increase in provision 10,000 -
Balance at end of year g - H -

To reduce exposure 1o credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit imits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limets of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:

2021 2020
Call deposits $ 3,183,318 § 545233
6. FIXED ASSETS
Furniture and
computer

equIprment Matar vehicles Tetal
Cost:
Balance at Decernber 31, 2019 S 741,880 % 3F2Bsd % 1,114,734
Additions 25,100 - 26,100
Disposals - a -
Balance at December 31, 2020 TET.980 72554 1,140,834
Additions 23,035 - 23,035
Balanee at December 31, 2021 791,015 372,854 1,163 568
Balance at December 31, 2019 657,498 279,723 937,221
Depraciation expanse 25,169 21,884 47,053
Dispesals - - =
Balance at December 31, 2020 682 667 301,607 B84, 274
Deprecialion expense 25,243 16,388 42 B29
Balance at December 31, 2021 708,910 317,983 1,026,803
Met book value, December 31, 2020 3 85313 § 71,247 § 156,560
Net book value, December 31, 2021 b B2105 § 54851 35 136,965
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

futhorized;

10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par value each

|ssued;

2,000,000 Ordinary voling shares (2020: 2,000,000) $ 2,000,000 2,000,000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distributions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distibution shall be paid
except oul of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended December 31,
2021, a dividend of 51,200,000 was declared and paid (2020c § nil). The nights conferred upon the
holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unkess otherwise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be vaned by tha
creation orf issue of further shares ranking pan passu therswith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consoidated financial statements inclede the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Tilly Mominees Limited and Coultry Directors Lid., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited {collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). Al of the subsidiaries listed below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

CInA,
Place of Propartion of ownership
Principal incorporation inlerest and voting power
Name of subsidiany activity and aperation held by the Company
2021 2020
Provide nominse
Tilty Nominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Coultry Directors Lid director services  Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilly Directors Limited director services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secretanes Limited secretary services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company's ability to access
or use assets or settle kabilities of the Subskdiaries.

As of December 31, 2021, guarantees in the total amount of $57%,610 (2020: $97%,610) have beenissued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Iskands on behalf of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following related party balances and

transachons:
S} 4 200
As of December 31;
Due from clients 416,812 1,089,270
Client acocounis receivable a87 477
Depositors’ accounts 750,884 618,720
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3932 8,544
Directarship, trustee and management fees 238,600 238,600
Directors’ fees (included in Administration expenses) 25,000 25,000
Rent expense 361,481 361,491

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Certain employees of the Company and certain assets of the Company are also ulilised by the Parent
for its angoing operations. The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged to
thie Parent and is not separately quantifiable.

Seme of the Company's employees are also providing directorship services to a number of cients who
have deposits and overdrafts with the Company.

The Company leases office space from a related parfy. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is curmrently leasing the space on a manth to month basis based on
the prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined confribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees.
Caontributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees' portion, The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2021 was 5143920 (2020: 5143 .650) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Page 15

137/187



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instnement is a contract that gives rise to a financial #sset of one entity and a financial Bability
of another entity, The Company anters into contracts involving financial instruments during the nommal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monitored by management. The main risks
arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk. The exposure to. and management of, these risks is
summarnsed below. The year-end figures reperted in these consolidated financial statements for
fimnancial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company 1o credit and counterparty risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clents and client accounts receivable.

The Campany manages its expaosure (o credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fived deposils
with a regulated financial institution in the Cayman Islands, only taking referred business, and
monitoring outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has a concenfration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by cne financial
institution in the Cayman lslands.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately 47 76% (2020 41%) of the Company’s
directorship, trustes and management fees were earmed from its three (2020: three) largest cuslomerns.
Mo other customers contribuled more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2021 or 2020,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Campany will encounter difficully in meeting chligations assodated with
financial iabilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors’ accounts which hawve a range of maturities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity rrsk s monftored by the Company's managemeant to ensuna
that the Company has sufficient liquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash outllows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its iabiities and assats, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order to manage iquidity nsk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk
Market nisk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises inferest rate risk and
currency sk,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fek is the fsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a inandal instrurment will luctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensuning that the interest rate on assats (Le. cash and
due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability {j.e. depositors’ accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. Items are allocated fo
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interes! rate re-pricing date and the malurity date.

20215
EMective
Interest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%] __ On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monetary Assats:
Cash and cash equivalants 0oi-005 § 3247717 § 4500000 § - § TrY T
D from chants 5248 416,812 - - 418,812
Cliant sccounts recelvable - 589,078 - - 559,078
Cther recatvables - 12,287 - - 12,287
5 4275B82 % 4500 £ - 5 _aTissm
Monetary Liabllities:
Deposiicrs’ accounts 0005001 § 3183319 § - § - § 3i@338
Accounts payable and sccrued
LT - 434 514 = - 434 514
§ 36I7TEI3 3§ - 5 - § 3617833
Sansitivity/liquidity gap § 6G5A058 § 4800000 % - 3 5158059
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (cortinued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
2020:
Effactive
Interest
Rata Less than  Groater than
_of Rengs (%) _ On demand 3 months 3 mionths Total
Monatary Assots:
Cash and cash equivabents 00015 § 4184838 5 5500000 S - § G684838
Dree from clents 526 1,089,270 - - 1,098,270
Cliant accounls recehvabis = 43 517 = 43 517
Other recahables - 13,124 - 13,124
5 5740743 5 5500000 5 - 5 11240749
Monetary Liabilities:
Deposion’ accouris Q4-0.005 3 5452331 5 - 3 - § 5452331
Accounts payable and acered
5 _spsssss § . 8 - §_59sesss
Sansitivitylliquidity gap $  (2I7B0T) 5 5500000 S - 5 52782103

The Company iz exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and floating interest rates on its cash flows.,

At Decemnber 31, 2021, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had beaen 30
{2020: 30} basis poinis higher with all other vaniables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 51.444 lower (2020: 5505 lower). If market interest rates had been 30 (2020; 30) basis points
lowrer with all other variables held constant, shareholder’s equity would have increased by less than
51,444 (2020; would have increased by less than $505) due to the fact that certain account balances
eamn interest at a rate lower than 20 basis points.

At December 31, 2021, with respect to the fived rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
{2020; 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
bean $13 500 higher (2020: $16,500 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (2020: 30) basis
points lower with all other vanables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than 513,500 (2020: would have decreased by less than $16 500} due to the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a rate lower than 20 basis points.

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting parod. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the pessible change in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures to the
fellowing currencies: Great Batain pound and Cayman Islands dellar (2020: Great Britain pound and
Cayman |slands dollar). Since the Company prepares its financial statements in United States dollars,
the Company’s consolidated statements of financial posiion are affected by movements in the
exchange rate of the Great Britain pound and the United States daollar, The Cayman Islands dollar has
a foced exchange rate against the United States dollar. Translation gainsfosses arnsing from these
exposures are reported net in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The table below shows the Company's cummency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentation currency or a currency with a fixed rate of exchange to the
presentation cumency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company may approximate
net foreign currency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
these exposures were as lollows:

Significant net foreian currency monetary assets, December 31, 2021 and 2020 (ranslated into United

States dollars):
20215
Met foreign
Cash and cash Deposilors’  currency monelary
equivalents accounts Bssels
GBP 3 S4.556 5 - 5 54,556
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk (continued)
2020:
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’ curmency monetary
aquivalents AcCounls ALLANE
GBP 3 i {1,445) § 55,193

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other vanables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 21, 2021 would
decrease of increase by 85 456 (2020: 55519).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its captal lo ensure thal the Company will be able o conlinue as a going
concern while maximising the retumn to the shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020,

The capital structure of the Company congists of issued Ordinary vating shares and retained earmings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to requlatory capital requirements established by CIMA.  Failure to meet
mirgmum capital requirements can initiate cerain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the Company's consolidated finandal statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Comparnies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invelve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, liabillies, and certain off-balance sheat items as calculated under regulatony
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amaounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
Judgments by CIMA about components and nzk weightings.

The Company is required at all irmes to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking lcense. The Company Is in compliance with this
requiremeant as at and for the years ended December 21, 2021 and 2020.

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company s required o maintain a minimum net worth of

KYD400,000 (LUS5500,0000. The Company is in compiance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Cirectors and
authorised for issue on March 22, 2022,

Page 20
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2022 30

2022 30 2021 12 31
7,667,517 1,110,333 7,747,716 1,121,947
0 0 416,812 60,359
37 5 21 3
1,601,282 231,882 668,112 96,749
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
114,522 16,584 136,966 19,834
9,383,358 1,358,804 8,969,627 1,298,892
2,467,792 357,361 3,183,319 460,976
1,147,915 166,230 693,706 100,456
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
247,511 35,842 104,829 15,180
0 0 0 0
3,863,218 559,433 3,981,854 576,612

1.00 10,000,000

2,000,000 2,000,000 289,620 2,000,000 289,620
3,520,140 509,751 2,987,773 432,659
5,520,140 799,371 4,987,773 722,279

9,383,358 1,358,804 8,969,627 1,298,892
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2022 30
2022 30 2021 12 31
5,000 724 41,671 6,034
5.000 724 41.671 6.034
0 0 0 0
2,423,458 350,941 4,687,515 678,799
19,200 2.780 38,400 5,561
90,492  13.104 221,622 32.093
2.538.150 367,550 4.989.208 722,487
180,746 26,174 361,491 52,348
1,035.837 150,000 2,077.076  300.781
72,408 10,485 143,920 20,841
170.881  24.745 348,125  50.412
40,640 5.885 77,299 11.194
13.513 1,957 23.500 3.403
109.371  15.838 248.943 36,049
38.160 5.526 84.063  12.173
13,250 1,919 34,450 4.989
75.114 10,877 128,100 18,550
3,720 539 4,854 703
1,231 178 2.532 367
25.281 3,661 58,256 8,436
20,763 3.007 38,510 5.577
0 0 0 0
3,002 435 9,781 1,416
10,984 1,501 12,161 1.761
0 0 0 0
77.262 11,188 167,624 24,274
14,875 2,154 35,729 5,174
9,825 1,423 33,325 4,826
1,666 241 1.167 169
242 35 9.573 1,386
18,461 2,673 25.000 3,620
4.496 651 11.373 1,647
0 0 0 0
8,048 1,165 7,893 1,143
14,983 2.170 32,688 4.734
22,444 3,250 42,629 6.173
0 0 0 0
18,579 2,690 37,045 5,364

2,005,782 290,457 4,057,107 587,510
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2022 30
2022 30 2021 12 31
532,368 77,002 932,101 134,978
2,987,773 432,659 3,255,671 471,454
0 0 (1,200,000) (173,772)

3,520,140 509,751 2,987,773 432,659
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as trustee of USD Prime One
Fund (5Y) 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

Inour opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial
position of USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04 (the “Class Fund"), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust
(the "Trust™) as at May 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Class Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at May 31, 2022;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor"s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (1ESBA Code) . We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the Class Fund®"s financial statements and our auditor®"s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Class Fund"s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Class Fund*s financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibi lities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Class Fund®"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund"s ability to continue as a going
concern. ITwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as trustee of the Class Fund in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands i1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

August 29, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 22, 2022
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